

DONCASTER METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

COUNCIL

THURSDAY, 24TH NOVEMBER, 2016

A MEETING of the COUNCIL was held at the CIVIC OFFICE on THURSDAY, 24TH NOVEMBER, 2016, at 2.00 pm.

PRESENT:

Chair - Councillor David Nevett
Vice-Chair - Councillor George Derx
Mayor - Ros Jones
Deputy Mayor - Councillor Glyn Jones

Councillors Nick Allen, Nigel Ball, Iris Beech, Rachael Blake, Joe Blackham, Bev Chapman, Phil Cole, John Cooke, Steve Cox, Jessie Credland, Jane Cox, Linda Curran, Susan Durant, Nuala Fennelly, Pat Haith, Neil Gethin, John Healy, Rachel Hodson, Charlie Hogarth, James Hart, Sandra Holland, Mark Houlbrook, Richard A Jones, Sue Knowles, Chris McGuinness, Sue McGuinness, Majid Khan, John McHale, Jane Kidd, Bill Mordue, John Mounsey, Jane Nightingale, Andy Pickering, Cynthia Ransome, Kevin Rodgers, Craig Sahman, Dave Shaw, Clive Stone, Sue Wilkinson and Paul Wray.

APOLOGIES:

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Elsie Butler, Tony Corden, Sean Gibbons, Kenneth Keegan, Ted Kitchen, Pat Knight, Andrea Robinson, Alan Smith, Austen White and Jonathan Wood.

44 Declarations of Interest, if any

There were no declarations made at the meeting.

45 Minutes of the Council Meeting held on 15th September, 2016

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Council Meeting held on 15th September, 2016, a copy of which had been circulated to each Member, be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

46 To receive any announcements from the Chair of Council, the Mayor, Members of the Cabinet or the Head of Paid Service

The Chair of Council, Councillor David Nevett, made the following announcement:-

“I’d like to send my congratulations to the organisers of the ‘Poppies at the Castle’ event which saw images of poppies projected onto the walls of Conisbrough Castle.

With the help of a grant from a local community fund established by the Council and successful Crowdfunding appeal, local organisers raised the £2,000 necessary to stage this magnificent display.

It really is a fantastic example of a local community working together to develop and deliver such a wonderful event.”

The Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones, made the following announcements:-

“Colleagues, today I am publishing the draft proposals for the 2017/18 Council Budget. Details will be available on the Council Website following this meeting. We may have recently had a change of Prime Minister, but I am afraid this has not changed the overall situation that we face. Government cuts to Council budgets are continuing, despite rising prices and increasing demand for services.

I can confirm that over the next four years, Doncaster Council will need to meet a further annual budget gap rising to £70m. We have already had to take around £200m out of annual revenue budget since Government austerity measures began. This makes the task in hand more challenging. However, by taking an innovative, prudent and robust approach, we have managed to minimise the impact of these cuts on local residents, whilst focusing on our goals:-

- To deliver efficient and effective public services;
- To support our most vulnerable residents; and
- To create new jobs, economic growth and housing.

We will continue this approach for the benefit of Doncaster, with the extension of successful initiatives such as our Smartlight project. We will also use our Capital Budget to invest in vital important improvement works and support new infrastructure.

By publishing these details today, colleagues have time to fully consider the draft budget before we debate it at Council in the New Year. In line with the offer I made last year, I would encourage all Councillors and Political Groups to get involved. I reiterate that offer and I am open to new proposals from colleagues, although I would add that any proposed amendments would need to demonstrate how they would be paid for.

If colleagues do wish to make any proposals, I would encourage them to do so at an early stage, in order that they can be fully considered and costed.

Moving on to my second announcement.

Whilst the news of further Government cuts to Council budgets is not welcome, I am determined that Doncaster should create its own future. We want a thriving Borough with a diverse economy, outstanding leisure opportunities and housing that meets the needs of everyone. I was therefore delighted to launch our new Masterplan for Doncaster Town Centre this morning.

It sets out a development framework which will ensure the centre of Doncaster drives the Borough’s economy, and is vibrant all week long. With its central location, a successful urban centre will deliver opportunities and benefits for communities across the whole district. It is vital for the economic future of our Borough, its residents and businesses.

The Masterplan proposes comprehensive and achievable plans to deliver this ambition. It also makes the most of our existing assets, including our markets, iconic heritage buildings, waterways and green spaces. What is most exciting is that we are already putting the plan into action. Existing projects under development include further development of the market area and a new gateway to Doncaster at the Railway Station.

A summary of the Masterplan, which will be published in full in the New Year, is available on the Council Website.

Finally Chair, I wish to make a brief announcement with regard to HS2.

Last week, the Government announced that it was minded to accept the damaging new proposals for the HS2 in our region. We have already discussed the impact this will have, including the destruction of homes and damage to the economic growth forecasts. In July, we stood tougher, united in our opposition to the proposals. Our position has not changed. Through the current consultation, we will continue to oppose the proposal and fight for a better solution, one which reduces the impact on our local residents and delivers enhanced economic growth to our Region.”

Councillor Bill Mordue, Cabinet Member for Business, Skills, Tourism and Culture, made the following announcement:-

“I would like to echo what Mayor Jones has said. Despite the significant challenges and Government budget cuts we have faced in recent years, Price Waterhouse Cooper have listed Doncaster’s economic growth in the top five in the country and is among the fastest in the UK and I am sure colleagues would like to join me in welcoming this good news, and I would like to put it out there in the Public domain.”

47 Questions from the public in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 13

There were no questions received from the Public.

48 Youth Justice Plan 2016/17

Council considered the Youth Justice Plan for 2016/17, which was a statutory and strategic document produced by the Youth Offending Service (YOS) who were responsible for the discharge of the Plan. The Youth Justice Plan had to be reviewed and considered by Council each year under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, in order to identify how youth justice services would be provided.

Councillor Nuala Fennelly, Cabinet Member for Children and Young People, informed Members that the Plan set out its resourcing and value for money, identified challenges to its future provision and mitigated the risks for the future delivery of the service. Additionally, it set out a clear structure and governance arrangements along with resourcing and partnership arrangements.

For the first time, the Youth Offending Team had developed a Young People’s Youth Justice Plan which aimed to complement the Corporate Youth Justice Plan, was user friendly, and was designed to help young people and their families gain a better understanding of how the system worked. This user friendly document had been acknowledged as an example of Good Practice throughout the Youth Justice Service in England.

Members noted that all the changes required as a result of the HMIP Full Joint Inspection in 2015, had been implemented into the Plan for 2016/17 and these had worked to contribute to the strong performance of the YOS with Doncaster now seen as having a strong YOS, with a reduction in its custody rate to its lowest ever.

Members welcomed the report and were pleased to see the positive impact that the Plan had on the young people within the Borough.

RESOLVED that the Youth Justice Plan 2016/17, be approved.

49 Neighbourhood Planning - Adoption 'Making' of the Burghwallis and Tickhill Neighbourhood Plans

Councillor Joe Blackham, Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Transportation, presented a report to Council which proposed the adoption of the Burghwallis and Tickhill Neighbourhood Plans which would ultimately form part of Doncaster's Development Plan.

It was reported that Neighbourhood Planning had been introduced with the Localism Act in 2011 and allowed Town/Parish Councils and the associated local communities to produce Neighbourhood Plans for their own areas. A statutory process had to be followed in adopting such plans and there were a number of legally prescribed stages that needed to be undertaken in preparing a Neighbourhood Plan. The final stage was the Referendum, whereby anyone living in the designated area had the right to vote on whether they wanted the Council to use the Neighbourhood Plan as part of the Development Plan and as a consequence, use it in the determination of planning applications for the specified areas.

It was noted that Tickhill and Burghwallis had now produced their own Neighbourhood Plans and the result of the Referendum was overwhelmingly positive with 87% of people voting 'yes' in both cases, opting for the Plans to be adopted.

Following the success of the Referendum in the two areas, the Council was required to adopt a Neighbourhood Plan and as the Local Planning Authority was satisfied that EU and Human Rights obligations had been met, there was no alternative option.

Local Councillors from the Wards affected, welcomed the Plans and stated that it was refreshing to see the local communities empowered. Members wished the areas of Tickhill and Burghwallis every success and endorsed the report.

RESOLVED that the Council formally adopt the Tickhill Neighbourhood Plan and the Burghwallis Neighbourhood Plan as part of the Statutory Development Plan for the Borough.

50 Local Government and Housing Act 1989 - 6 Month Review of the Proportional Allocation of Seats on Committees and Sub-Committees

Council considered a report that advised of any changes to the proportional allocation of seats on Committees and Sub-Committees appointed to by Council following the 6 month review, as a consequence of any changes to the Political composition of the Authority.

Members noted that whilst there had been a change to the Political balance of the Authority, there had been no change with regard to the overall proportional allocation of seats on Committees and Sub-Committees appointed to by Council. However, as a result of the vacancy in the Norton and Askern Ward, there were 3 seats that had been allocated to the Labour Group that were currently vacant and therefore, Council was requested to approve replacement nominations from the Labour Group for the following Committees for the remainder of the 2016/17 Municipal Year:-

- Planning Committee - Councillor John McHale
- Audit Committee - Councillor Iris Beech
- Chief Officers Appointments Committee (Substitute Member) - Councillor Sue McGuinness

RESOLVED that

- (1) it be noted that the existing proportionate allocation of seats on Committees and Sub-Committees remained unchanged from the position reported at the Annual Council Meeting on 13th May, 2016;
- (2) the Labour Group nominations be appointed to serve on the following Committees:-
 - Councillor John McHale on Planning Committee;
 - Councillor Iris Beech on Audit Committee;
 - Councillor Sue McGuinness on Chief Officers Appointments Committee as a Substitute Member; and
- (3) it be noted that no Political Group wished to make any revisions to Committee and Sub-Committee memberships.

51 Council Appointments to Outside Bodies - Sheffield City Region Combined Authority Transport Committee and South Yorkshire Police and Crime Panel

Council considered a report that sought approval for the appointment of Member representatives to fill the existing vacancies on the Sheffield City Region Combined Authority (SCRCA) Transport Committee and the South Yorkshire Police and Crime Panel (PCP).

Members noted that it was important that Doncaster Council was represented on the Outside Bodies identified in order to enable Doncaster to effectively contribute towards the delivery of these bodies' functions.

As outlined within the report, the Membership of the SCRCA Transport Committee was subject to Political proportionality across the four South Yorkshire Districts and therefore, only a Conservative Councillor could be appointed. However, with regard to the allocation of seats on the PCP, Doncaster was entitled to appoint two Labour Councillors, and substitutes.

On being asked for a nomination for a representative on the SCRCA Transport Committee, the Leader of the Conservative Group informed Council that they had chosen not to nominate a Member at the present time as they felt that the current decision making arrangements within the SCRCA did not allow for a meaningful contribution to be made by a representative on this Committee.

RESOLVED that

- (1) no nomination was received for the Conservative Councillor representative on Sheffield City Region Combined Authority's Transport Committee; and
- (2) Councillor John Healy be appointed as the replacement Labour Councillor to fill the vacancy on the Police and Crime Panel.

52 To consider the following Motion, written notice of which has been given by Councillor Rachael Blake and Seconded by Councillor Pat Haith, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 16.1

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 16.1, a Motion was submitted by Councillor Rachael Blake and Seconded by Councillor Pat Haith:-

“Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council recognises and values local pharmacies as a vital primary care health service and as an integral part of the fabric of local communities throughout our Borough.

Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council notes that 79 pharmacies in the Borough offer a range of services such as dispensing prescriptions, disposal of unwanted medicines and supporting self-care:-

- Pharmacies play an important role in promoting wellbeing such as healthy eating, smoking cessation, exercise, flu vaccination, sexual health and more. We already work closely with them.
- Advice and support services are also available to care homes.
- Local pharmacies are recognising and evidencing their role in improving the health of their local population.

Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council is greatly concerned about Government imposed threats to pharmacies as a result of cuts in the budget of £170m nationally to take effect from 1st December, 2016.

The actual amount of the cuts may be less now, but being taken over a shorter time period so percentage-wise will have a greater impact – equivalent to around £25k/annum per pharmacy, and also announced is a further 7% cut next financial year on top of this.

Service cuts in pharmacies put more residents at risk as well as putting pressure on GPs and on hospital services and therefore increasing NHS costs. A fully funded community pharmacy service is cost effective and is in the interest of patients and carers.

Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council agrees to write to the Secretary of State for Health, NHS England and Doncaster Clinical Commissioning Group, detailing our concerns and demanding an immediate reversal of these proposals.”

The Chair afforded all Members the opportunity to speak on the Motion.

A vote was taken which was declared as follows:-

For – 45

Against – 0

Abstain – 0

On being put to the Meeting, the Motion was declared CARRIED.

RESOLVED that Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council recognises and values local pharmacies as a vital primary care health service and as an integral part of the fabric of local communities throughout our Borough.

Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council notes that 79 pharmacies in the Borough offer a range of services such as dispensing prescriptions, disposal of unwanted medicines and supporting self-care:-

- Pharmacies play an important role in promoting wellbeing such as healthy eating, smoking cessation, exercise, flu vaccination, sexual health and more. We already work closely with them.
- Advice and support services are also available to care homes.
- Local pharmacies are recognising and evidencing their role in improving the health of their local population.

Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council is greatly concerned about Government imposed threats to pharmacies as a result of cuts in the budget of £170m nationally to take effect from 1st December, 2016.

The actual amount of the cuts may be less now, but being taken over a shorter time period so percentage-wise will have a greater impact – equivalent to around £25k/annum per pharmacy, and also announced is a further 7% cut next financial year on top of this.

Service cuts in pharmacies put more residents at risk as well as putting pressure on GPs and on hospital services and therefore increasing NHS costs. A fully funded community pharmacy service is cost effective and is in the interest of patients and carers.

Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council agrees to write to the Secretary of State for Health, NHS England and Doncaster Clinical Commissioning Group, detailing our concerns and demanding an immediate reversal of these proposals.

53 To consider the following Motion, written notice of which has been given by Councillor John Mounsey and Seconded by Councillor Nigel Ball, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 16.1

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 16.1 a Motion was submitted by Councillor John Mounsey and Seconded by Councillor Nigel Ball:-

“This Council condemns the Home Secretary’s rejection on 31st October, 2016 in Parliament of an Orgreave Inquiry as a grave injustice.

This Council is appalled by the decision not to hold an inquiry into the policing of picket lines at the Orgreave coking plant 18th June 1984 Miners’ Strike. With this ruling, the Home Secretary has shown great contempt for the Orgreave Truth and Justice Campaign, many former miners, their families and communities who for more than 32 years, have waited for the truth and who have displayed huge courage and tenacity in trying to hold the authorities to account. Fighting for those locally who worked at Askern, Barnburgh, Bentley, Brodsworth, Cadeby and Denaby, Hatfield, Markham Main, Rossington and Yorkshire Main.

This Council observes that even the Independent Police Complaints Commission said in their redacted report released June 2015, that there was ‘evidence of excessive violence by police officers, a false narrative from police exaggerating violence by miners, perjury by officers giving evidence to prosecute the arrested men, and an apparent cover-up of that perjury by senior officers’.

This Council is astonished that in the light of such statements the Home Secretary concludes that there are few lessons to be learned by the current police forces from any review of these events, that no one died, there was no miscarriage of justice, no convictions and therefore there will be no inquiry.

This Council notes that 95 miners were arrested and charged with riot offences, including 3 miners from Brodsworth Colliery, but all were later acquitted amid claims that South Yorkshire Police had fabricated evidence. There were also widespread examples of pickets being beaten unconscious by police officers. That miners suffered such treatment simply for exercising their right to protest against the threat to their jobs, their industry and communities.

It is shameful that as yet, no-one has to answer for the events of that day. Monday 31st October has been a bad day for justice. We do however salute the decision of the Orgreave Truth and Justice Campaign to continue with its fight for transparency and a full public inquiry and we will do everything we can to help them.

This Council will write to the Home Secretary asking that she takes into account the opinion of this Council, accepts that there is wide spread public concern about the events at Orgreave and calls on her to order an inquiry into them.”

The Chair afforded all Members the opportunity to speak on the Motion.

A vote was taken on the Motion which was declared as follows:-

For – 39

Against – 2

Abstain – 4

On being put to the Meeting, the Motion was declared CARRIED.

RESOLVED that the Council condemns the Home Secretary's rejection on 31st October, 2016 in Parliament of an Orgreave Inquiry as a grave injustice.

This Council is appalled by the decision not to hold an inquiry into the policing of picket lines at the Orgreave coking plant 18th June 1984 Miners' Strike. With this ruling, the Home Secretary has shown great contempt for the Orgreave Truth and Justice Campaign, many former miners, their families and communities who for more than 32 years, have waited for the truth and who have displayed huge courage and tenacity in trying to hold the authorities to account. Fighting for those locally who worked at Askern, Barnburgh, Bentley, Brodsworth, Cadeby and Denaby, Hatfield, Markham Main, Rossington and Yorkshire Main.

This Council observes that even the Independent Police Complaints Commission said in their redacted report released June 2015, that there was 'evidence of excessive violence by police officers, a false narrative from police exaggerating violence by miners, perjury by officers giving evidence to prosecute the arrested men, and an apparent cover-up of that perjury by senior officers'.

This Council is astonished that in the light of such statements the Home Secretary concludes that there are few lessons to be learned by the current police forces from any review of these events, that no one died, there was no miscarriage of justice, no convictions and therefore there will be no inquiry.

This Council notes that 95 miners were arrested and charged with riot offences, including 3 miners from Brodsworth Colliery, but all were later acquitted amid claims that South Yorkshire Police had fabricated evidence. There were also widespread examples of pickets being beaten unconscious by police officers. That miners suffered such treatment simply for exercising their right to protest against the threat to their jobs, their industry and communities.

It is shameful that as yet, no-one has to answer for the events of that day. Monday 31st October has been a bad day for justice. We do however salute the decision of the Orgreave Truth and Justice Campaign to continue with its fight for transparency and a full public inquiry and we will do everything we can to help them.

This Council will write to the Home Secretary asking that she takes into account the opinion of this Council, accepts that there is wide spread public concern about the events at Orgreave and calls on her to order an inquiry into them.

54 To consider the following Motion, written notice of which has been given by Councillor Bill Mordue and Seconded by Councillor Linda Curran, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 16.1

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 16.1, a Motion was submitted by Councillor Bill Mordue and Seconded by Councillor Linda Curran:-

“Doncaster Council views with concern the injustice whereby the Treasury receives 50% of surpluses from the Mineworkers Pension Scheme, accumulating over £8 billion to date. This is taken from people and communities least able to afford it, particularly across Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council, a former coal mining area with many ex miners. The money taken is out of proportion to the risk covered, and calls for independent scrutiny by the Public Accounts Committee to address this unfair arrangement.”

The Chair afforded all Members the opportunity to speak on the Motion.

A vote was taken on the Motion which was declared as follows:-

For – 39

Against – 0

Abstain – 6

On being put to the Meeting, the Motion was declared CARRIED.

RESOLVED that Doncaster Council views with concern the injustice whereby the Treasury receives 50% of surpluses from the Mineworkers Pension Scheme, accumulating over £8 billion to date. This is taken from people and communities least able to afford it, particularly across Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council, a former coal mining area with many ex miners. The money taken is out of proportion to the risk covered, and calls for independent scrutiny by the Public Accounts Committee to address this unfair arrangement.

55 Questions by Elected Members in accordance with Council Procedure Rules 15.2 and 15.3

A. Questions on Notice

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15.2, the Chair accepted the following questions from Elected Members during “Question Time”:-

(a) From Councillor Clive Stone to the Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones:-

Q. “For past 18 months, Rossington has been blighted by a huge increase in waste processing, and an increase in heavy good vehicles, with no regard to the community.

Despite having an alternative route, Vehicles are travelling through the heart of Rossington past 3 junior schools.

DMBC Planning are looking at granting retrospective planning permission for this lorry park which has been used since August of last year with no planning permission at all!! To continue as a staging post for HGVs for another 18 months!

The site is not fit for purpose and the access is sited on a blind bend, dangerous for pedestrians and motorists.

Can we reassure residents that their concerns are being heard and we review and consider all of the objections seriously?”

A. The Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones, gave the following response:-

“Thank you for your question Councillor Stone.

I am also concerned about this issue. I would like to reassure you, and residents in Rossington, that the Council is working hard to try and help resolve the problem.

The increase in HGV movements to the Attero Waste Recycling Site occurred because the Environment Agency issued an Environmental Permit Variation. This variation allowed an increase in the volume of waste imported to the site annually. It was done without any consultation with the Council.

Since this time, the Council has been working hard to ensure that the waste processing sites along Bankwood Lane are operating in line with their planning permissions, specifically in terms of hours of operation.

Enforcement action has been undertaken and Breach of Condition Notices have been served on three waste operators. A significant level of monitoring has been carried out by Officers in the Enforcement Team, to ensure compliance with the notices. Ultimately, the best solution would be to create new access into the Industrial Estate which takes traffic away from residential areas whilst supporting businesses to flourish.

The Council has therefore been exploring this opportunity with key local businesses and landowners; we are in advanced discussions over the provision of a new link road from the Great Yorkshire Way, which would reduce the amount of traffic on the local highway network. Through these negotiations, I am hopeful that the project can be delivered.

In the meantime, we must deal with the matter in hand as effectively as possible, within planning regulations and the law. Unfortunately, planning conditions cannot be retrospectively set to limit activity or stipulate routing. The Council has no traffic or highway powers to be able to restrict the volume or type of vehicles using the public highway to legitimately access these premises. Any weight limits for example, would need to allow exemptions for access. I would however, certainly encourage operators to make good use of the new access to Rossington in order to balance the impact on this community.

In terms of the HGV holding area, I understand that a planning application has been received by the Council from Attero. This is for a temporary use of a piece of land at the junction of Bankwood Lane and West End Road.

A significant level of publicity has been carried out by the Planning Department to ensure that residents have an opportunity for their

concerns to be heard. This included a recent 'drop-in' even at the Memorial Hall in Rossington. As part of the Council's consideration of the planning application, the highways implications will also be fully assessed by Highways Officers. Access and pedestrian safety are key concerns, and they will be looked at.

I can assure you that no recommendation has been made yet on the current planning application. Once the consultation has been completed, the application will need to be submitted to the Planning Committee for a decision.

It is important to be clear that as Mayor, I cannot get involved in the determination of planning applications. That decision must go through the proper process. However, all representations made on the planning application will be given full consideration and residents' voices will be heard."

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15.7, Councillor Stone asked the following supplementary question:-

Q. "Thank you for your response. The new access to these sites will take a further 12-18 months. In the meantime, these vehicles will continue travelling through the heart of the village past all the Schools and residents' properties, the Police Station, level crossings etc. We do not have a single pedestrian crossing anywhere along the route; residents' safety and concerns must be a priority and must be addressed accordingly.

Why has the company been allowed to use land for the last 15 months with no planning permission in place at all. Is this a case of business coming first over the concerns of residents and how has this improved the quality of life of residents on the Bankwood Lane Estate when we are looking to grant an extension of 18 months retrospectively?"

A. The Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones, gave the following response:-

"As I said, Planning Committee will consider this and all representatives will be heard, but I cannot interfere with due process."

(b) From Councillor John Cooke to the Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones:-

Q. "Our fresh produce Market is a jewel in the crown of Doncaster, yet many stall holders are unhappy with the rents and charges applied by this Council, and many are now considering their future, which is extremely worrying with so many businesses moving out of the Town Centre.

With the advent of Christmas, would the Council please consider these long standing stall holders and look at reducing their charges before they start voting with their feet, along with lifting parking charges on market days to encourage people to come in to the Town and benefit from this fantastic award winning Market of ours.

I am sure all Councillors would support our local Market and promote this most valuable of assets?”

A. The Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones, gave the following response:-

“Thank you for your question Councillor Cooke.

Doncaster Market certainly is a jewel in our crown and one of Doncaster’s key assets. I am determined that they should be as successful as possible.

We have already undertaken a number of initiatives to support the Market and its traders since I became Mayor. This includes action, agreed with the Market Traders, to cut rent rises this year. It follows the implementation of a 10% rent reduction for three months which I also agreed earlier this year to support traders.

I am also pleased to announce that we will once again be providing free parking at Chappell Drive in the lead up to Christmas. This will support the Market and the Town Centre as a whole. In addition, we have an array of exciting events and activities taking place. They include the recent successful Christmas Lights Switch On and I can confirm that the Christmas Land Train will be returning to the markets again.

Of course, the Coca-Cola Lorry will be bringing even more Christmas spirit to the Market when it arrives in Doncaster on December 8th. Over 3500 people have already indicated that they will be attending that event, giving a huge boost to the Markets and its Traders.

We are further developing our partnership approach to services and events in the Town Centre. Colleagues will also have noted that extra Police Officers have been allocated to the Town Centre and Markets area, to help ensure the environment remains pleasant and safe for traders and our residents.

I can announce that we are also producing a new ‘Doncaster Markets 2025 Strategy’ to ensure that the Markets continue to improve and remain successful in the coming years.

Finally, as colleagues have heard, this morning I launched our exciting new Masterplan to boost the Town Centre. Regeneration of the Markets area is a key cornerstone of the masterplan. We are determined to create a successful Markets area which is vibrant seven days a week, rather than just on market days.

Our new plans will make the most of our iconic heritage buildings, including the Corn Exchange and Wool Market. Restoration work has already started on the Corn Exchange Building and the plan will also deliver additional parking at the popular markets car park.

Together, these initiatives demonstrate how my Cabinet and I are working together to deliver a comprehensive and achievable plan to maximise the success of our Markets and whole Town Centre. It is a

plan that has been sorely missing under the previous administration, but one that shows the difference that can be achieved under a Labour Mayor.

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15.7, Councillor Cooke asked the following supplementary question:-

Q. "Although I appreciate the positive efforts of the Mayor to promote the Market at Christmas and I do agree that this Council requires a suitable and sustainable plan, it should enshrine a clear, free parking policy for close and adjacent car parks on a 7 day, 52 week basis, especially in the afternoons, to encourage and enable greater access to our jewel in the crown which was developed by independent traders well before this current Labour administration?"

A. The Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones, gave the following response:-

"Thank you for your second question and I reiterate that we're making the whole of the Chappell Drive car park available from the 7th of December which will assist not only the Market, but also the trade within the whole of the Town Centre."

(B) Questions Without Notice

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15.2, the Chair accepted the following questions from Elected Members during Question Time:-

A. Questions to Ros Jones, Mayor of Doncaster

Q. Councillor James Hart asked the Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones:-

"I want to ask a quick question around the Urban Master Plan announced earlier today. I love a master plan; I think it is fantastic. I am a firm believer in the fact that we would not have the building we are sat in, or CAST and some of the other improvements we have around the Town Centre if we did not have a forward looking plan.

I was a little surprised with the communication you sent out earlier on including the details of the Plan from your own website; although, I thought it was a bit early for electioneering. But, I am interested to hear about how we will take this forward and what sort of timescales are involved, and the action plans behind it and if there is anything you can 'flesh out' for us, but I appreciate that it is early days?"

A. "As the actual statement states, this is actually a plan to hang many things on. It splits the Borough so that we can actually get the right call as we work forward in order to achieve economic benefit for all. Individual schemes will come along and will be undertaken with consultation and networking with the right people. What we are saying is this; we have commenced work on the Market, we will be commencing work on the Railway Station which is the gateway to the centre, but this is the initial launch and the full Master Plan will be out there, early next year, for people to see. This is the right thing to do.

This is not about electioneering; this is about actually improving the economy of this Borough, which we all should get behind, and make sure we make Doncaster a thriving, economic, sustainable place. Thank you for your question.”

Q. Councillor Nick Allen asked the Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones:-

“I would like to know what meaningful assistance the Council has offered to the residents of ‘Tent City’ which seems to have appeared over the last month or so. I am sure we are all aware of the bad winter we are going to have and yet, here we have a very obvious and real problem with homelessness in the Town. ‘Tent City’; I am sure we could offer them meaningful assistance other than tents?”

A. The Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones gave the following response:-

“Homelessness is increasing in Towns and Cities across the country. It is something that should concern us all and in my view, the Government must take action to tackle the root causes of the problem.

Their austerity measures are clearly hitting the poor people who can afford it least. Of course, homelessness and ‘sleeping rough’ is a complex issue, but we have some excellent services in Doncaster, provided through the Council, St. Leger Homes and a range of local organisations. Council Officers have been to the site to see the organisers of ‘Tent City’ to speak to those there and support them into services.

We have already had success through this approach and we will continue the work being done. We have also offered ‘Tent City’ a seat at the table to speak to us and share their knowledge and experience with us. I am pleased to say that we have agreed to work together, along with others who are trying to help the homeless, to address the issue.

Only if we work in this way will we succeed in helping as many people who find themselves homeless or sleeping rough so we are working very much in partnership with as many different sectors as possible.”

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15.7, Councillor Allen asked the following supplementary question:-

Q. “Has any of that assistance actually moved any people from the streets into a home?”

A. The Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones, gave the following response:-

“The assistance provided has certainly moved at least 5 people and I know of 1 further person who has moved away to find housing. We will continue to work with all concerned who have complex needs; 6 people have already been assisted and we will work with each and every one.”

Q. Councillor Clive Stone asked the Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones:-

A. 15

“Following on from Councillor John Cooke’s remarks, I was wondering why it’s not possible with regard to the Market Place, to follow the example of Rotherham and Barnsley Councils who have obliterated the car parking charges totally at weekends to enhance footfall in their Markets.

It’s welcome that we have free parking facilities at Chappell Drive, but has anyone tried to cross the dual carriage way with bags of shopping on a Saturday? It’s welcomed, but unfortunately it’s not really what we are looking for.”

A. The Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones gave the following response:-

“We will continue to support where we can with massively reduced resources imposed upon us from Central Government. We are working with the Market Traders and what we have done with their rents alone is a big assistance to them.

I too walk along that road and park at Chappell Drive, and carry bags. More importantly, we are actually helping not only the Market Traders, but also the whole of the Town Centre which needs massive help in order to make ours a really vibrant Town. We have actually survived very well regarding the closure of certain stores, but more importantly, we have got to ensure that we deliver for the whole of the Borough and the Markets is one part which we see as very much a corner stone. Thank you for your question.”

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15.7, Councillor Clive Stone asked the following supplementary question:-

Q. “Just to add another fact, we are aware that three Market Stall Holders will be leaving the Market after Christmas which is a sad indictment, so let’s see what happens?”

A. The Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones, gave the following response:-

“I would urge any of the Market traders to speak directly with our Market staff. We are working hand in glove; we are always there trying to assist where we can so I would urge them to get in touch with the Market staff initially, because I know there is consultation currently going on now.”

B. Questions to the Deputy Mayor, Councillor Glyn Jones, Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Equalities

Q. Councillor Rachael Hodson asked the Deputy Mayor, Councillor Glyn Jones:-

“Does the Deputy Mayor agree with me that the lack of funding for the NHS and Social Care in the Government’s Autumn Statement, is a damning indictment of the Government’s approach to sick and

vulnerable people? Listening to the budget, it would seem that the Chancellor forgot to mention the NHS completely.”

A. The Deputy Mayor, Councillor Glyn Jones, gave the following response:-

“Thank you for your question. I too am deeply disappointed that there was no announcement from the Chancellor yesterday regarding funding for the NHS and particularly, Social Care.

The Government is forcing costs on to local taxpayers and it is quite simply not good enough; it’s not good enough when a national solution is required for this issue.

It is not just me that thinks this is a major problem. Lord Porter of Spalding, the Conservative Chair of the Local Government Association, led criticisms, warning that Local Authorities face a £5.8bn, (I did say a £5.8bn) funding gap by 2020, putting services at breaking point.

He said ‘It is unacceptable that this has not been addressed in the Autumn Statement’, and quite frankly, I agree with him.”

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15.7, Councillor Hodson asked the following supplementary question:-

Q. “Thank you for your response. Just to say, I am sure that all the Councillors hope that you are doing everything that you can to try and put pressure on the Government to look again and increase the funding going into the NHS and Social Care, especially given the dire state of the situation, especially in Doncaster and its surrounding communities?”

A. The Deputy Mayor gave the following response:-

“Indeed Councillor Hodson, we are doing that, along with the LGA who I know are making representations on our behalf on a daily basis. Thank you for your question.”

Q. Councillor Cynthia Ransome asked the Deputy Mayor, Councillor Glyn Jones:-

“Councillor Jones, I would like to ask a question with regard to the equalities of the elderly residents in rural areas. In my Ward, elderly residents in Hampole and Skelbrooke no longer have a bus service. They did have a bus that ran two days a week, which in fact they couldn’t use their bus passes on and had to pay for, but then the bus was stopped and these people were been forced into isolation. Now, we do have a bus one day a week, which is on a Monday and which its users have to pay for, but this is no good, it’s not a market day and when we talk of how good Doncaster’s markets are and improving the Borough, it’s no good if people can’t get out and use the markets or go anywhere.

We asked the question what happens if pensioners need to visit the Doctor and we were told that they can use 'Dial-a-Ride', which is all very well and good, but this is costing people £4.50 each way, and £9 for a round trip. My concern is that there are many extra buses in lots of areas, but really, why is it that in the places that need them, they aren't getting them and the rural villages are being cut off?"

A. The Deputy Mayor gave the following response:-

"I absolutely agree with you Councillor Ransome and I sympathise with you regarding the bus services. Many people are facing the same situation all across Doncaster and it goes back to 1986 when the bus service was deregulated, and it decimated services. It is now being run as a private business and has been brought about by cuts from Central Government. I will see if there is anything I can do, but the blame is laid at this Government."

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15.7, Councillor Cynthia Ransome asked the following supplementary question:-

Q. "There is a lot of blame being laid at the Government! I also remember the mess the Labour Party left the country in. This is Doncaster's problem and the South Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive have been naughty and cooked the figures; they have said the bus service was not used when in fact there were 10-15 people using this service twice a week. They laid on a minibus for this service which was perfectly adequate whereas now, there is a huge bus, just once a week, which is not value for money?"

A. The Deputy Mayor gave the following response:-

"I find it interesting how the Conservative Group have decided not to put anyone on the Transport Committee in South Yorkshire where they could raise this issue personally, but I will indeed take this issue back for you."

Q. Councillor Nigel Ball asked the Deputy Mayor, Councillor Glyn Jones:-

"Thank you Deputy Mayor for triggering my memory; it was actually the Tory Party back in the 1980s that basically deregulated the bus services and transport services which has led to the services being run for profit, not as a public service, which has ostracised and made all these people quite vulnerable in rural villages. On top of that as well, the £170 million cuts that's being aimed at pharmacies will further compound that vulnerability and that issue is again coming from a Tory Government and these outlying rural villages and communities are basically being left as ghost Towns; I can't really see where Labour has got the blame for that as it lies squarely with the Tory Party."

A. The Deputy Mayor gave the following response:-

"Thank you Councillor Ball for that succinct question and I totally agree with the sentiments you have raised."

C. Questions to Councillor Joe Blackham, Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Transport

Q. Councillor Steve Cox asked Councillor Joe Blackham:-

“I would just like to ask Councillor Blackham of his thoughts about the Transport Executive Committee?”

A. Councillor Blackham gave the following response:-

“There is no such group. The Executive is actually the Leaders of the Authorities. The Transport Committee is not an Executive; it has no decision making capacity; it does not set the budget; it does not set the priorities and certainly, it does nothing in terms of being able to contribute. The reality is, it can only operate within a given budget and as the budgets to Local Authorities are cut, transport will also take its share of that reduced budget and the reality of that is that the consequence is a reduced transport provision, not only to our rural communities, but many of our urban centres as well. We do not have the provision we previously had.”

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15.7, Councillor Cox asked the following supplementary question:-

Q. “Would you agree with me that there is really no purpose for that particular Committee?”

A. Councillor Blackham gave the following response:-

“I have already advised you that there is no real function for that Committee; it is in the throws of a reorganisation that eventually will find a role for a Transport Committee even if it is only an Overview and Scrutiny function, but it is not a decision making body.”

Q. Councillor Cynthia Ransome asked Councillor Joe Blackham:-

“Joe, I would like your help again. This week it is with regard to Planning. I’ve received a number of complaints from people stating that they can’t get through, the Planning Department don’t return their calls, they don’t return emails and when they do get through to them, it’s like they can’t get rid of them quickly enough. They feel like a hot potato being passed from Department to Department. I would very much appreciate your intervention or your feelings on this. One of the other things that is happening is that when applications are passed and conditions are applied, these are not being adhered to, and when residents contact Planning Enforcement to complain again, there is no response or it takes several weeks or months before it is being looked at. The general feeling is that if you submit a planning application, you can do what you want after it’s approved?”

A. Councillor Joe Blackham gave the following response:-

“I find it intriguing actually, as latterly we’ve moved from a more reticent Planning regime to a very proactive Planning regime. We are working within Nationally agreed timeframes for dealing with planning applications where we have seen performance rise from around 67% to 96% which is a phenomenal change. There should be no difficulty in terms of connectivity, especially considering we now have a single enforcement entity and as a result, it is not just Officers within the Planning Department who can enforce planning issues. In fact, we reacted very quickly to one case a week ago in Hatfield, which was actually dealt with overnight. If you provide me with details, I will investigate these cases and make sure I provide the feedback you require.”

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15.7, Councillor Ransome asked the following supplementary question:-

Q. “Thank you and I will. I appreciate planning applications are being dealt with quicker and that they are going through the process, but my big complaint is when the conditions that have been applied are not being met and when people ring up, they can’t get through, and then when they do it is not followed up, so I will indeed give you the details of three cases I am aware of?”

A. Councillor Blackham gave the following response:-

“As I suggested, if you let me have those details, I will look into this and I will ensure I provide you with that information.”

Q. Councillor Nick Allen asked Councillor Joe Blackham:-

“Do you think the Asset Management Board should become more open and transparent, and perhaps be reconstituted as a sort of Overview and Scrutiny Panel where Councillors from across the political spectrum can sit on the Asset Management Board particularly valuable given the reasons relating to the Call-In where there was a dispute about the value of certain assets which we were disposing of.

Do you think it would allow us to avoid that situation in the future if Councillors were able to sit on the Asset Management Board similar to an Overview and Scrutiny Panel?”

A. Councillor Blackham gave the following response:-

“As I have already corresponded to you in an email, the Assets Board is made up of Officers of the Authority. There are no Elected Members because it is purely a ‘mechanical’ thing. There is no need for Elected Members to be present. The only Elected Member is myself; I sit on the Asset Decision Making Board along with Dave Wilkinson and Steve Mawson, and they make recommendations, not decisions. None of this is decision making. The ultimate decision rests with the Mayor of Doncaster who is the Executive of this Authority. So, there is no involvement currently, nor is it anticipated there will be any involvement in future of Elected Members.”

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15.7, Councillor Allen stated the following:-

Q. "Thank you for the clarification.

D. Questions to Councillor Tony Corden, Cabinet Member for Customer, Corporate and Trading Services

In the absence of Councillor Tony Corden, Cabinet Member for Customer, Corporate and Trading Services, the Chair of Council informed Members that any questions for Councillor Corden should be submitted in writing to the Executive Office after the meeting and a response would be provided accordingly.

E. Questions to Councillor Nuala Fennelly, Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Schools

Q. Councillor James Hart asked Councillor Nuala Fennelly:-

"I had my finger hovering over the download button as the Education and Skills Commission Report came out on 21st October.

I was a little disappointed that it's not on today's agenda for Members to discuss the recommendations of the Commission's findings. The 30 recommendations that are included in it are very interesting recommendations that we can grab as an Authority and take forward.

I am a little disappointed by the lack of inclusion of apprenticeships; it mentions the word apprenticeships just 3 times. In fact, recommendation 19 is to have another review into the Post 16 skills provision available, so it would have been better to have more clarity on that in the report in order that we could have a more joined up approach.

My question is, have we got a long term plan of how we see this being put into action, reviewed and then acted upon; what are we going to do with it?"

A. Councillor Nuala Fennelly gave the following response:-

"The Education Commission was initially set up for professionals to come in and look at what we do and the professional people that came in, had a view of the whole of Doncaster and how our Education fits together and yes, apprenticeships were included in that and we have different sections in the education department, and we will work with regeneration and education partners, that will also work with apprenticeships.

What we are doing at the moment is that we are working on the findings from the Commission and we are putting a plan together. Technically, we do not have to take any notice of what's in that; we can take out bits

that we do not want. We are looking at what pieces we know will work and we obviously need to do this as quickly as possible.

I cannot give you an end date for our plan to come out at moment, but I will do in the future. We are waiting for our GCSE results which will not come out until 19th January, 2017. They should have been out in October, then December, but now we will not get them until 19th January.

So, we can build on what we have already got and we can look to the future and decide where we are going to go and how we are going to do that. This will be decided through myself, the DCS, Assistant Directors and Managers of each Department, and how we will use that plan to move forward and I think this is one of the key things we have to do. What they said to us is, 'this is what is wrong', it's what they see is wrong not what we see is wrong; an outside perspective is good, but sometimes you have other information inside that works a little bit better.

So, what we need to do is look at the whole plan of what the Education Commission has said, but there are other things coming in the background. We have got Sixth Form Colleges to look at. We have got a new Principal at the College and we do not know what she will change at the College. We do not know what's going to happen with lots of different things.

As you all know, all our Secondary Schools are Academies and we don't have as much information on them as we should have, but I have to say, all the Head Teachers have been very good about what the Education Commission has said. They agree with most of it and we agree with most of it, so we are looking at doing that, but we will not be doing that in isolation just with the Council. We will be doing this as a partnership with the Schools and partners like the NHS. This all works together for the whole of Doncaster; it comes under Team Doncaster.

It will work in the way that if we need children to be assessed in School for their health, then that needs to be done. If we need children to be assessed for their academic prowess, then we need to look at that as well. So, it is about the whole picture. It's also about children in care who will come through us, in our Schools, it's a massive picture that we are trying to put together. So we will put it together and we will come up with a plan that hopefully will work. We will bring information to Council and what I can do, every month, is feedback to all Ward Members about where we are with different things, and we intend to feed back in the same way as we move forward with the Education Commission Plan for the whole of Doncaster. All the Schools are up for it; nobody has refused to come in on the plan."

Q. Councillor Cynthia Ransome asked Councillor Nuala Fennelly:-

"I am a great believer in education. What irritates me intensely and maybe I am being slow on this, but why do Senior School Children

come out of School at 2.30 pm? I have heard that they start earlier, but surely, the answer would be to have them in School longer.”

A. Councillor Nuala Fennelly gave the following response:-

“I totally agree with you actually because one thing I say is that they should be in School. What I do know is they go in 30 minutes earlier and they have less of a lunch break, but that is entirely up to the Schools to choose if they want to do this. If I think about it, students used to have ‘Sports Afternoons’ on a Wednesday, but they don’t have ‘Sports Afternoons’ anymore.”

Q. Councillor Neil Gethin asked Councillor Nuala Fennelly:-

“Do you agree with me that a good place for Council Members to come in to discuss the Education and Skills Commission is the Children and Young People’s Overview and Scrutiny Panel Meeting which is on Tuesday, 6th December, which Councillor Hart will be welcome to attend, at 10.00 am. We have allowed an hour on the agenda to discuss the issues and for any Members who wish to put forward anything towards the Commission Plan. This is possibly a much longer time than we may have had at Full Council. Everyone is welcome to attend and if anyone wishes to put an item into that, I am more than happy to accept it, and discuss it as Chair of the Children and Young Peoples Overview and Scrutiny Panel. Therefore, do you agree that it is a good idea?”

A. Councillor Nuala Fennelly gave the following response:-

“I do agree. You can go to the Overview and Scrutiny Meeting and ask questions. However, you will be limited on the answers you will get; you will be able to put your opinions forward, but you still will not be able to get the answers to your questions because until the plan is put together, nothing will be decided. You can attend, ask your questions and if you want to input into the process, I would suggest you do so, but we will only introduce the plan to everyone when it is ready.”

F. Questions to Councillor Pat Knight, Cabinet Member for Public Health and Wellbeing

In the absence of Councillor Pat Knight, Cabinet Member for Public Health and Wellbeing, the Chair of Council informed Members that any questions for Councillor Knight should be submitted in writing to the Executive Office after the meeting and that the Cabinet Member would respond accordingly.

G. Questions to Councillor Chris McGuinness, Cabinet Member for Communities, the Voluntary Sector and Environment

Q. Councillor Cynthia Ransome asked Councillor Chris McGuinness:-

“Fly tipping; what I find is a declaration of how many reports we have about fly tipping. My Ward, Sprotbrough, is next to the highest. The villagers I would say are in despair. They telephone, email, arrange

litter picks; people are ready to talk to them, but they never see any action. One of the comments that came up, which is a good idea, is to keep the tips open, considering that they have been closed. Apparently, as I have been informed, all the tips, I mean Recycling Centres (household waste), close on the same day; they do in the areas these people are talking about?”

A. Councillor Chris McGuinness gave the following response:-

“What I can tell you is there is a review ongoing into Household Waste Recycling Centres. Their opening hours at Christmas will not be changing; there will not be the closures over the Christmas period that there were before. That’s where we are at the moment so I can’t give you a definitive answer.”

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15.7, Councillor Ransome asked the following supplementary question:-

Q. “What are you going to do about fly tipping?”

A. Councillor McGuinness gave the following response:-

“We are doing a lot about fly tipping, but I can get a report back to you if you require.”

Q. Councillor Craig Sahman asked Councillor Chris McGuinness:-

“Every time I see a problem regarding fly tipping in my Ward of Sprotbrough, I am happy to say it is cleared up within 24 hours so I don’t see this as a big problem. However, if there is a problem I think this may be caused due to issues with neighbouring rubbish sites. For example, if you live at Hickleton and Barnburgh, you can’t drop your rubbish at Thurnscoe Waste and Recycling Site which is only 1 mile away and instead, you have to go to the site at Conisbrough which is 3 miles away. They will not allow you to put your waste in this site. This causes people to fly tip and you can see this happening at Barnburgh and Hickleton. It does need something doing about it so we can work more closely with neighbouring authorities and have this conversation?”

A. Councillor Chris McGuinness gave the following response:-

“We have been trying to work closely with the BDR partnership and this is something I will bring up as I don’t think this been raised before. I don’t think there is any mechanism for dealing with this at the present time and what happened outside of the boundary, so I will raise this as part of the review of the South Yorkshire Waste Strategy.”

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15.7, Councillor Sahman stated the following:-

Q. “In Thurnscoe, they do ask you for your post code and if you do have a Doncaster postcode, they do turn you away; I know as I have had it done to me.”

Q. Councillor Andy Pickering asked Councillor Chris McGuinness:-

“Just to echo what Councillor Sahman has just said; we find a similar situation. The closest tip is in the Rotherham Borough and bearing in mind most of the waste comes back into the BDR Waste Partnership, it seems ridiculous that we cannot use Rotherham and vice versa if it is in fact more suitable for people?”

A. Councillor Chris McGuinness gave the following response:-

“As I said, I will take it back. I am fascinated; we have just had a really long consultation on the waste contract and waste collection and management strategy, and I don’t recall seeing any of this. No one has brought this up before; it’s the first time I have heard of it, but I will come back on it.”

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15.7, Councillor Pickering stated the following:-

Q. “It is not a question exactly, but as Councillor Sahman has said, if you do visit the site at Thurnscoe, they do ask you for your post code as they do in Swinton now.”

Q. Councillor Clive Stone asked Councillor Chris McGuinness the following question:-

“Just a quick question, in light of the advent of applications in Nottinghamshire and Misson in terms of fracking, I wonder if you can clarify if we have had any applications or if there is anything pending on the fracking front, one way or another, in Doncaster?”

A. As the question fell within the remit of the Portfolio of Councillor Joe Blackham, Councillor Blackham gave the following response:-

“There are none that I am aware of.”

H. Questions to Councillor Bill Mordue, Cabinet Member for Business, Skills, Tourism and Culture

There were no questions put to Councillor Bill Mordue, Cabinet Member for Business, Skills, Tourism and Culture.

I. Questions to Councillor Jane Nightingale, Cabinet Member for Housing

There were no questions put to Councillor Jane Nightingale, Cabinet Member for Housing.

J. Questions to Councillor John Mounsey, Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee

There were no questions put to Councillor John Mounsey, Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee.

56 To receive the Minutes of the following Joint Authorities

RESOLVED that the Minutes and Briefing Notes of the following Joint Authorities be noted:-

- A. South Yorkshire Police and Crime Panel held on 9th June and 8th July, 2016;
- B. Sheffield City Region Combined Authority held on 12th September, 2016;
- C. South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority held on 19th September, 2016, and Section 41 Briefing Notes for September, October and November, 2016; and
- D. South Yorkshire Pensions Authority held on 6th October, 2016.

CHAIR: _____

DATE: _____